
DAVID Y. IGE 
GOVERNOR 

 

 
DOUGLAS MURDOCK 

Comptroller 
 
 
 

 STATE OF HAWAII 
 

DEPARTMENT OF ACCOUNTING AND GENERAL SERVICES 
 

P.O. BOX 119, HONOLULU, HAWAII  96810-0119 

 

 
State Capitol Management Committee (SCMC) Meeting 

Tuesday, March 17, 2015 
9:00 a.m. 

State Capitol Building, Conference Room 414 
415 South Beretania Street 
 Honolulu, Hawaii  96813 

 
MINUTES 

 
 Attendees:  See attached roster 
 

1. Call to Order – 9:20 a.m. 
 

2. Introductions, Public Comments 
a. Present committee members introduced themselves. 
b. Mr. Kurata acknowledged the guests and asked if there were any comments. 

i. Dan Purcell:  Provided several comments: 
• Based on an article from the Guardian Newspaper, fingerprint 

readers are unsuitable as an access control system.  Mr. Kuroda 
responded that the access system being implemented is capillary 
based, not fingerprint, which is a little more secure.  He also asked 
Mr. Purcell to provide a copy of the article. 

• There are currently three ‘Lost and Found’ locations in the 
building and he suggests there be only one as a convenience to the 
public. What happens to unclaimed items? There are accountability 
concerns.  Mr. Kurata replied that the committee will take it under 
consideration. 

 
3. Minutes of the February 17, 2015 Meeting was accepted without comments and will 

be posted on the committee’s website.  http://ags.hawaii.gov/csd/scmc/ 
 

4. Maintenance and Operation Update:  Mr. Kurata introduced Jimmy Hisano from 
 DAGS, Central Services to brief everyone on the following: 

a. Access and Exit Challenges – To address the concern of when the building is 
closed to the public (after hours and on the weekends), a memo has been sent 
to the building occupants stating that if the public or staff needs assistance to 
exit the building, they are to call the building security and the Sheriffs will 
assist the person in exiting the building at the street level since the elevators 
do not stop at the street level after hours.  There is a buzzer at the basement 
level by the main glass doors at the chamber level that leads to the security 
office.  If the parking lot gate is closed and you are locked in, the Sheriffs can 
assist you. 



State Capitol Management Committee 
Minutes for March 17, 2015 Meeting 
Page 2 
 

b. Rotunda Planters:  Two types of plants, the Kukui and Uki Uki will be 
planted. 

c. Graffiti and Exterior Trash Can Servicing:  Graffiti has been taken care of, 
and the groundskeepers have been instructed to empty the trash cans twice a 
day (morning and after lunch).  Senator Espero commented that hopefully the 
landscaping staff, as well as the Sheriffs, are reporting any graffiti daily so 
that it can be cleaned up within a reasonable amount of time. 

d. Building Hours:  
i. During session, the building is open from 6:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. on 

Mondays through Fridays; 8:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. on Saturdays; the 
building is closed on Sundays and Holidays. 

ii. When Legislature is not in session, the building is open from 6:00 a.m. 
to 6:00 p.m. on Mondays through Fridays; the building is closed on 
Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays. 

 
5. Security Update:  Mr. Tsuha passed out his report (attached) which shows the 

background of the upgrade of the camera system, electronic access control to the 
building and a keyboard alert system.  He asked the committee to review the format 
and to provide any suggestions.  He has tasked the Capitol Patrol to collect data on 
what they do.  The greatest number of incidents for the past couple of months has 
been assisting the homeless in the Civic Center complex.   Capitol Patrol provides a 
wide range of services throughout the civic center complex, not only the State Capitol 
building. 

a. Electronic Access:  Mr. Kuroda reported that 370 of the House members and 
staff have been registered and about 43 from the Legislative Reference Bureau 
(LRB).  Ms. Taniguchi reported that about 75 Senators and staff members 
have been registered.  Mr. Kuroda suggested that the only non-governmental 
individuals to be enrolled would be the press staff that occupy space in the 
building, which would be the Star Advertiser (3 people) and the Associated 
Press (1 person), but asked for feedback from the committee.  Senator Espero 
asked about the press occupying space.  Mr. Kuroda indicated that they pay 
rent; however, he does not know the exact arrangements.  Mr. Kurata 
indicated that we will find out how much rent they pay and report it at the next 
meeting.  Senator Espero commented that since they do pay rent, they should 
have access to the building too. 

b. Security Cameras:  Senator Espero asked if all the cameras were working.  
Mr. Tsuha responded “yes”, with the exception of two located in areas that are 
hard to access – way above the reflecting pool, under the overhang. 

c. Keyboard Alert System:  Senator Espero asked if the keyboard alert system 
was up and running.  Mr. Kuroda responded not 100% yet - it is online now, 
but it is up to the House, Senate and each agency to move forward with the 
installation on the designated PCs.  Any alert notification would be made to 
both Sergeant at Arms Offices and the Sheriffs.  The Governor’s and Lt. 
Governor’s offices would be notified by the Sheriffs, if needed.  Mr. Kuroda 
mentioned that they would take care of notifying the LRB.  Senator Espero 
asked if we have funding for the repairs and maintenance of the system on an 
annual basis.  Mr. Tsuha responded “yes” – thanks to the Legislature that 
appropriated funds during last year’s session. 



State Capitol Management Committee 
Minutes for March 17, 2015 Meeting 
Page 3 
 

 
6. Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Update:  Mr. Kurata introduced Ms. Chris 

Kinimaka from Public Works.  Ms. Kinimaka passed out a handout (attached).    
The Backlog Repair list contains all of the overall repair and maintenance on the 
larger side for all their facilities statewide.  They have crews that visit each facility 
annually to update this list to make sure that all the critical conditions are captured 
and to prioritize projects by needs of the facility.  The list highlights the top projects 
for the State Capitol building totaling $13.9 million.  

a. Future CIP:   
i. Ms. Kinimaka stated that the cost may run up to $10 million to 

completely renovate the pools.  Senator Espero asked if there has been 
any discussion about removing the water from the reflecting pools.  
Ms. Kinimaka responded that there has; however, the State Capitol is a 
historic facility and approval would be needed from the State Historic 
Preservation Department (SHPD).   A previous request was denied by 
SHPD because the water element must be preserved. 

ii. Senator Espero asked if we paid the $2 million to the contractor for the 
new fire alarm system.  Ms. Kinimaka replied “not yet” since they still 
need to remove the old fire alarm system.  Senator Espero added that it 
has been a problem having false alarms, so has it been fixed with the 
new system?   Mr. Kurata responded that the contractor is responsible 
for the maintenance and they are obligated to remedy any problems.  
Also, DAGS and the contractor will provide a report whenever there is 
an alarm.  After session ends, the old alarm will be removed and they 
will provide information to the occupants as to the cause of the alarms.  
Senator Espero asked when the new system was installed.  Mr. Kuroda 
responded that work started after session ended last year continuing 
through last December, then stopped when this year’s session began.  
The system has been tested and passed.  Senator Espero asked who is 
the point person for DAGS.  Mr. Kuroda responded that would be the 
Project Manager from DAGS and that his office has been working 
with DAGS.  Senator Espero asked if DAGS could provide a report on 
the false alarms.  Mr. Kurata responded that DAGS will provide a 
report at the next meeting. 

b. Energy Conservation:  A retrocommission study will assist to identify 
potential energy conservation measures. 

 
7. Discussion Items: 

a. Current DAGS Admin Rules:  Mr. Hisano reported that there is a link on the 
Central Services website to review the Admin Rules for DAGS buildings.  
The Admin Rules addresses things you can and cannot do in the building.   
Mr. Kuroda suggested there be separate Admin Rules for the State Capitol.  
Maybe assign a subcommittee to initiate rules for the State Capitol.   
Mr. Kurata replied that since it would take a lot of effort to change the Admin 
Rules, we should try to make adjustments at this committee level.  
 
 

 



State Capitol Management Committee 
Minutes for March 17, 2015 Meeting 
Page 4 
 

   
b. Current Process to Address Tenant Concerns within a DAGS Building:   

Mr. Hisano stated that the building occupant should report their concerns to 
their respective Sergeant at Arms office and, in turn, those offices will contact 
Central Services.   

 
8. Other Business: 

a. Mr. Kuroda brought up the hours of the building where a number of 
Representatives, elected officials and staff members are interested in opening 
the building later and closing earlier.  If no official function is going on, the 
building should be closed.  Also, if there is nothing going on during the 
weekends, the building should be closed.  If there is a scheduled activity, the 
building would stay open ½ hour after the activity ends.  The Sheriffs would 
do a quick sweep before closing the building.  Ms. Johnston commented that 
we need to be sensitive of the Sheriffs’ shift change times.  Mr. Tsuha 
indicated that the shift times are 6:00 a.m. to 2:30 p.m., 2:00 p.m. to 10:30 
p.m. and 10:00 p.m. to 6:30 a.m. The committee proposes to change the 
building hours to 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. and to close the building on 
Saturdays, Sundays and holidays if no official function is scheduled.   
Mr. Kurata advised Mr. Kuroda and Ms. Taniguchi to check with their 
leadership and Mr. Tsuha to check with his operations on the possibility to 
pilot this idea.  If everyone is in agreement, we can give it a try. Mr. Tsuha 
added that if the building hours are changed, we would need to provide 
signage to notify the public of the changes.  

b. Mr. Tsuha introduced Patrick O’Brien, vendor for the electronic access 
system.  The system that has been installed is the most advanced technology. 
It reads not only the fingerprint, but the layer under which is the capillary 
pattern.  He believes this system is the first in Hawaii, but is being used on the 
mainland.  Mr. Tsuha requested that the committee review the draft of the 
policy and procedures for the system and provide any comments before it is 
finalized.  Mr. Kurata suggested that Mr. Tsuha include this info in his 
security update for the next meeting.  The committee can talk about it and 
develop it and start a subcommittee to determine on how to move forward. 

 
9. Next Meeting Date:  Ms. Taniguchi to check on the availability of a conference room.   

 
10. Adjournment – 10:44 a.m. 

 
 
   
  
  
 














	DOUGLAS MURDOCK
	DEPARTMENT OF ACCOUNTING AND GENERAL SERVICES

	DAVID Y. IGE

